
 

 
 

 

CABINET 
 

4.00 pm WEDNESDAY, 18TH DECEMBER, 2019 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the  
Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should 

contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

OPEN SESSION 

Strategic 

3. Cabinet Forward Plan   

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

5 - 30 

4. Transport Infrastructure   

 To consider report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

31 - 36 

5. Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) – Funding 
Applications  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer 
Neighbourhood Services 
 

37 - 40 

Portfolio 

6. Off Street Parking Places Order Amendment 20   

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

41 - 44 

7. Part Stopping Up Of Adopted Highway   

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

45 - 50 

8. School Reorganisation 3-16 Voluntary Aided 
School  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Education 
 

51 - 58 

9. Fostering Service Post Inspection Action Plan   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

59 - 66 

10. Extension of 20 mph Zone in Gellideg – Proposed 
Permanent Traffic Regulation Order  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer 
Neighbourhood Services 

67 - 72 



 

Information Reports 

11. MTCBC Change and Well-being Programme – 
Quarter Two Progress 2019-2020  

 

 To receive report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

73 - 78 

CLOSED SESSION 

Exempt 

In order for the following to be considered in private, it is suggested that the 
public be excluded from the meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph (14) under Part 4 of 
Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 

12. Bus Station Progress Report   

 To receive report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

79 - 84 

13. Direct Payment Support Services   

 To receive report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

85 - 88 

RE-OPENED SESSION 

14. Any Other Business Deemed Urgent by the Chair   

 
 
 

  
COMPOSITION: Councillors     K O'Neill (Chair) 

                       L Mytton (Vice-Chair)  
  
 Councillors     A Barry, C Davies, D Hughes and 

G Thomas 
 

 together with appropriate officers 
  

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 In order to enhance governance arrangements and strengthen forward planning, a 

Cabinet Forward Plan for Cabinet Meetings has been developed (Appendix 1). 
 
1.2 In response to a Wales Audit Office recommendation, MTCBC has developed the 

first draft of the Cabinet Forward Plan.  It should be noted that this is a live 
document.  It is also the first version of the plan and it will be built upon over time.   

 
1.3 The Cabinet Forward Plan will also act to improve planning of the Scrutiny function.   
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION that 
 
2.1 the Cabinet Forward Plan (Appendix 1) be approved. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Cabinet Members will be aware that MTCBC has never had a Cabinet Forward Plan.  

However, as part of strengthening governance arrangements under the MTCBC 
Change Programme, work has been undertaken in developing a first iteration of the 
forward plan that focusses on the Council’s Focus on the Future plan, including its 
Well-being Objectives (formally referred to as the Corporate Plan).   
 
 
 
 

Date Written 28th November 2019 * 

Report Author Andrew Mogford 

Service Area Change and Performance 

Committee Division Strategic 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 18th December 2019 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



3.2 Cabinet Members will recall that the Council’s Well-being Objectives are: 
 
3.2.1 Working Life: 

 People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet needs of 
businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination 

 
3.2.2 Environmental Well-being: 

 Communities protect, enhance and promote our environment and 
countryside 

 
3.2.3 Living Well 

 People are empowered to live independently within their communities, 
where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. 

 
3.2.4 Best Start to Life 

 Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped with 
the skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals. 

 
3.3 In order to enhance governance arrangements and strengthen forward planning, a 

Cabinet Forward Plan that includes the schedule of reports for Cabinet Meetings has 
been formulated (please see Appendix 1).  The development of the Cabinet Forward 
Plan has been done through collaboration between Cabinet Members and the 
Corporate Management Team (together with other relevant Council Officers).  This 
has been achieved through meetings, discussions and research regarding how other 
Councils set out and deliver their forward plans.   

 
3.4 It is important to state that this is the first iteration of the plan.  As such it 

predominantly includes regular reports, e.g. financial reporting.  Nevertheless this 
sets the foundations that will be built upon and will be widened going forward.  As 
this version of the Cabinet Forward Plan has been developed in-year, it will also be a 
test of how the plan should be developed and reviewed to best suit MTCBC in 
delivering its outcomes for the Citizens of Merthyr Tydfil.   

 

3.5 In addition it should be noted that the Wales Audit Office (WAO) have placed 
recommendations on the Council to develop a Cabinet Forward Work Programme.  
The WAO published a recommendation for the Council to develop such a plan in 
2017, the report states: 
 

“P1 – Publishing a Cabinet forward work programme that includes details for 
forthcoming service change proposals to be determined” 

 
‘Good governance when determining service changes’; Wales Audit Office; February 2017 

 
3.6 In developing the Cabinet Forward Plan, MTCBC is responding to this 

recommendation and strengthening its governance arrangements.  As the Council 
enhances its longer term plans the Cabinet Forward Plan will become more robust 
and the WAO recommendations will be further addressed.  As alluded to above, this 
first version predominantly includes regular items being presented to Cabinet e.g. 
quarterly financial reports.   

 

Page 6



3.7 It is important to note that this is a live document and will work alongside the 
development and delivery of the Council’s Focus on the Future document (Corporate 
Plan).  The Cabinet Forward Plan will also be reviewed along with the Corporate 
Plan and inform the development of Scrutiny Forward Plans.  This is a key factor in 
strengthening the scrutiny planning function.   

 
3.8 The Cabinet Forward Plan will particularly act to improve the Scrutiny function by 

enabling better forward planning for Scrutiny Committees and provide the opportunity 
of all aspects of the function to be undertaken e.g. pre-decision call-in.  This 
addresses findings from the WAO Good Scrutiny Report (2018), chiefly: 

 

 “P3 – The Council should review the level and type of scrutiny support required to 
enable the scrutiny function to respond to current and future challenges. 

 

 P4 – The Council should improve the development of scrutiny forward work 
programming through: 

 
o Ensuring that overview and scrutiny committees take ownership of forward 

work programmes and committee agendas”. 
 

Overview and Scrutiny: Fit for the future? – Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council; Wales Audit Office; 2018 

 
3.9 The Cabinet Forward Plan will be monitored regularly and outcomes recorded 

against all aspects of the plan.  This will ensure we deliver in line with our core 
values of openness and honesty.  The plan will be reported to Cabinet and Council 
on a quarterly basis.  Scrutiny Committees will be able to use the plan throughout the 
year in line with Scrutiny Forward Plans to allow for proactive and more informed 
challenge.   

 
3.10 If approved, the Cabinet Forward Plan and process will be reviewed and updated 

following lessons learnt in this first year.  This will allow MTCBC to launch a second 
iteration of the plan along with reviewing the Corporate Plan in readiness for 
2020/2021 delivery.  This will then be used in the development of Scrutiny Forward 
Planning.  The Cabinet Forward Plan will need to dovetail with other key changes 
and/or reviews, a view supported by the recently formed Support and Assurance 
Board. 
 

3.11 If approved the Cabinet Forward Plan will be translated into Welsh and published on 
the MTCBC website. 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications associated with the recommendations within this 

report. 
 

5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
5.1 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

Page 7



Objectives 
  

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The Cabinet Forward Plan will inform the challenge function of the Council and enable 
better proactive planning.  This helps the Council to deliver services through the 
sustainable development principle.  Each report will have its own impact assessment. 
 

 
ELLIS COOPER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR KEVIN O’NEIL 
COUNCIL LEADER 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

Yes 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 
 

Page 8



 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 1 of 21 

 
 

 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Cabinet Office 
 

Cabinet Annual Strategic Forward Work Programme 
April 2019- April 2020 

 
 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Civic Centre 
Castle Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8AN              
 
Tel: 01685 725000 
Email: www.merthyr.gov.uk 

P
age 9

http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/


 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 2 of 21 

As part of strengthening governance arrangements at Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC), work has been undertaken 
in developing a first iteration of the Cabinet Forward Plan that focusses on the Council’s Focus on the Future plan, including its Well-
being Objectives (formally referred to as the Corporate Plan). 
  
The Cabinet Forward Plan sets out priority deliverables and reports over the upcoming year.  The development of the Cabinet 
Forward Plan has been done through collaboration between Cabinet Members and the Corporate Management Team (together with 
other relevant Council Officers).  This has been achieved through meetings, discussions and research regarding how other Councils 
set out and deliver their forward plans.   
 
The Cabinet Forward Plan helps MTCBC to focus on delivery against its Well-being Objectives; the Council’s priorities.  These 
objectives were formed following consultation with the Citizens of Merthyr Tydfil and after assessing the needs across the County 
Borough.  This exercise was done approximately two and half years ago and delivery against the objectives is done regularly and 
forms part of the Council’s working practices.  These Well-being Objectives are outlined below: 
 
Working Life 
People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes 
Merthyr Tydfil an attractive destination 
 
Environmental Well-being 
Communities protect, enhance and promote our environment and countryside 
 
Living Well 
People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental 
health 
 
Best Start to Life 
Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals 
 
 
 
 

P
age 10



 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 3 of 21 

By clearly setting out the plans for the year ahead and when decisions are going to be made we continue to build on our engagement 
and transparency.  This also allows for better scrutiny of decision making and how we can improve our performance. 
 
The document below sets out the first iteration of the MTCBC Cabinet Forward Plan.  This first version predominantly focusses on 
our regular reports, for example our quarterly financial reports.  Once we have had chance to pilot our approach we will strengthen it 
further.  This will be done by recording outcomes and putting monitoring arrangements in place.  This will help us further improve 
accountability.    Following this and any lessons learnt, we will build on the plan going into 2020/2021.  We will be able to have more 
proactive challenge and place more focus on delivering our priorities for the Citizens of Merthyr Tydfil.    
 

P
age 11



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 4 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

April Focus on the Future 
(Corporate Plan) - 
Approval 
 

Setting / updating the Council’s priorities 
against our Well-being objectives (our 
Corporate Plan). 

Non- 
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

Yes Yes 

April Deed of Variation – VVC 
Adoption Service 
Collaborative Agreement 

Agreement to enter into a Deed of Variation 
in respect of the Collaborative Agreement 
between the partner authorities which form 
Vale, Valleys and Cardiff Adoption Service 
(VVC). 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 

 No 

April Extra Care Service Award of contract for the provision of Extra 
Care for people residing at the Ty Cwm 
Extra care facility in Merthyr Tydfil. 

Exempt 
– Para 

14 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 
 

 No 

May Payment of Care Home 
Fees 2019-2020 

To agree the level of payments to 
independent sector residential and nursing 
care service providers. 
 

Non- 
Exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 No 

May 21st Century Schools – 
Community Learning 
Centres 

Outlines the two capital development 
applications to the 21st Century Community 
Learning Centres Grant 
 

Non- 
Exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

No No 

P
age 12



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 5 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

June Change and Well-being 
Programme - Quarter 4 

Quarter 4 update of progress against the 
MTCBC Change Programme 

Non- 
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

Yes No 

June Corporate Risk Register 
Year End Highlight Report 

Provide an update on Corporate Risks Non- 
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

No (Audit 
Committee) 

No 

June Welsh Language Annual 
Monitoring Report 

To provide an update on the Welsh 
Language action plan 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

No No 

June Provisional Revenue 
Outturn 2018/19 

Detail the revenue budget position for 
2018/19 subject to audit of the accounts 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

Summary to 
Audit 

Committee 24th 
June as part of 

Provisional 
Statement of 

Accounts 
2018/19 

No 

P
age 13



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 6 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

June Provisional Capital 
Outturn 2018/19 

Detail the capital budget position for 
2018/19 subject to audit of the accounts 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

Summary to 
Audit 

Committee 24th 
June as part of 

Provisional 
Statement of 

Accounts 
2018/19 

 

No 

June Children’s Services 
Reconfiguration 2019-
2020 

Information about the changes involved in 
Children’s Services reconfiguration. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 
 

 No 

June Ageing Well in Wales Plan 
2019-2024 

An outline of the content of the Cwm Taf 
Ageing Well in Wales Plan 2019-2024 for 
publication in June 2019. 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 

 No 

June Direct Payments Scheme Information regarding the development of 
the Direct Payments Scheme and the hourly 
rate to be paid for the service. 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 

 No 

June Update on the 
Reconfiguration of the 
Edge of Care offer – 
Children’s Services 

Detailed information about the Edge of Care 
re-design. 
 

Exempt 
– 

Paragra
phs 13, 
14 & 15 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 
 

 No 

P
age 14



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 7 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

July Change and Well-being 
Programme - Quarter 1 

Quarter 1 update of progress against the 
MTCBC Change Programme 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

Yes No 

July Annual Scrutiny Report Set out and update on the Scrutiny function 
progress and findings 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

Yes No 

July Revenue Budget 
Monitoring 2019/20 – 
Quarter 1 

To provide Cabinet with the projected 
revenue budgetary position for the 2019/20 
financial year as part of the budget 
monitoring process 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 No 

July Capital Monitoring 
2019/20 – Quarter 1 

To provide Cabinet with the projected 
capital budgetary position for the 2019/20 
financial year as part of the budget 
monitoring process 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 No 

P
age 15



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 8 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

July Procurement Quarterly 
Monitoring report – 
Information Report 
 

To provide Cabinet with details of tender 
awards 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 No 

July Cwm Taf Carers Annual 
Report 2018-19 

We were required to submit an Annual 
Report to Welsh Government to provide an 
overview of the activities undertaken as 
part of the implementation of the Carers 
Measure.  Although the Carers Measure has 
been repealed, the requirement for an 
Annual report has been continued for 
2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19 as part of 
the conditions of transitional funding from 
WG in place until March 2020. 
 

Non-
exempt 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 

 No 

July Support to Special 
Guardians 

Information about the improvements to our 
support to Special Guardians in line with the 
Code of Practice and our development of 
the Early Help Hub. 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 

 No 

P
age 16



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 9 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

July Capita One – Hosting & 
Technical Support 

Seeks financial approval to move forward 
with a long-term hosting and technical 
solution for Capita One. 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

No No 

July LMS Fair Funding Scheme 
of Delegation 2019-2020 

Presents the recommendations of the 
Schools Forum to make changes to the 
Scheme of Delegation 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

No No 

September MTFP Update 
(PROVISIONAL) 

To provide an update on the budget setting 
process for 2020/21 and beyond. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 Yes 

September CIW Letter re: 
Performance 

To provide information to Cabinet about the 
work undertaken by CIW in the last year and 
their comments on social services 
performance. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 
 

 No 

September Inspection of Community 
Mental Health Team 

To provide cabinet with information in 
respect of the recent CMHT inspection and 
highlight any areas that require an action 
plan in future. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 
 

 Yes 

P
age 17



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 10 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

September School Closure of 
Accounts 

To provide an update on  schools balances 
at the financial year end 2018/19 and the 
financial risk and sustainability of school 
budgets following the setting of school 
budgets and indicative Medium Term 
Financial Plans (MTFPs) 2019-2022. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

No No 

September Flying Start Programme 
Performance 

To provide information on the attainment 
of children who took part in the Flying Start 
programme 2018-19 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

Yes No 

September Young People’s 
Participation and 
Facilitation of the 
Merthyr Tydfil Borough 
Wide Youth Forum 
(MTBWYF) and Office of 
Youth Mayor – Update 
 

Highlights the successes in relation to the 
young people’s participation agenda and 
the facilitation of MTBWYF during 2018-19 
and the work to be taken forward during 
2019/20. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

No Yes 

September NEETs Prevention and 
Performance 
 

Outlines how the local authority has 
performed with regards to Not in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET) prevention 
and how it continues to support those 
young people 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

No No 

September 3-16 Faith School 
Consultation 

Produce a report on the consultation of a 
new 3-16 faith school 
 

Non-
Exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

No No 

P
age 18



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 11 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

October Change and Well-being 
Programme - Quarter 2 
 

Quarter 2 update of progress against the 
MTCBC Change Programme 

Non-
exempt 

 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

Yes No 

October Annual Performance 
Report 

Findings and judgements regarding the 
Council’s annual performance 

Non-
exempt 

 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

Yes Yes 

October Council Tax/NDR Write 
off Report 

To write off irretrievable Council Tax and 
NDR in accordance with the FPR. 

Exempt Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

No  

October Sundry Debt Write Off 
Report 

To write off irretrievable Council Tax and 
NDR in accordance with the FPR. 

Exempt Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

  

P
age 19



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 12 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

October MTFP Update 
(PROVISIONAL) 
 

To provide an update on the budget setting 
process for 2020/21 and beyond. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 Yes 

October Procurement Quarterly 
Monitoring report – 
Information Report 

To provide Cabinet with details of tender 
awards. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 No 

October Cwm Taf Winter 
Pressures Plan 2019-20 

Plan regarding the winter pressures placed 
on Cwm Taf 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 
 

No No 

October Valley Life Wellbeing 
Centre - Update 

An update report regarding the Valley Life 
Wellbeing Centre project 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 
 

No No 

P
age 20



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 13 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

October Children’s Services 
Inspection 

Information to be provided to Cabinet in 
respect of progress against the children 
services inspection’s action plan. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 
 

Yes No 

October Education Asset 
Management Plan 

Consideration of the Asset Management 
Plan specifically relating to Education 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

 Yes 

October 
 

Future Funding for Gypsy 
Roma and Traveller 
Learners and Pupils for 
whom English is an 
Additional Language (EAL) 
 

To provide information on provision and 
attainment where appropriate of specific 
vulnerable groups 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

No No 

October Period Dignity To provide information on how the grant 
from Welsh Government for “Period 
Dignity” has been used and the plans for the 
future spend of this grant. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

No Yes 

October Youth Support Services 
Progress Against Strategy 
 

To provide an overview of the findings of a 
mapping exercise undertaken to refresh 
information held on the wider youth 
support services available to young people 
aged 11-25 in Merthyr Tydfil. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

No No 

P
age 21



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 14 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

October Nursery Proposals Proposals regarding nursery provision 
across the County Borough 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

 Yes 

November Annual Risk Report A report outlining the Council’s Corporate 
risks and actions against them 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

No (Audit 
Committee) 

No 

November Revenue Budget 
Monitoring 2019/20 – 
Quarter 2 

To provide Cabinet with the projected 
revenue budgetary position for the 2019/20 
financial year as part of the budget 
monitoring process 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 No 

November Capital Monitoring 
2019/20 – Quarter 2 

To provide Cabinet with the projected 
capital budgetary position for the 2019/20 
financial year as part of the budget 
monitoring process 
 

Exempt Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 No 

P
age 22



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 15 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

November MTFP Update 
PROVISIONAL 

To provide an update on the budget setting 
process for 2020/21 and beyond. 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 Yes 

November MTFP Update 
PROVISIONAL 

To provide an update on the budget setting 
process for 2020/21 and beyond. 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 Yes 

November Annual Residents Survey To provide Cabinet with an update on the 
feedback from the annual resident’s survey 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 Yes 

November Foster Care Incentives To provide information to Cabinet in respect 
of proposals for incentives to recruit foster 
carers. Cabinet are asked to approve 
incentives. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 
 

No No 

P
age 23



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 16 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

November Increase in School Meal 
Prices 

To consider if there should be an increase in 
school meals for the forthcoming academic 
year 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

No No 

November 21st Century Schools – 
Band A Strategic Outline 
Programme (SOP) 
 

To request additional capital funding and 
awarding of contract for Ysgol Y Graig new 
school build. 

Exempt Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

No Yes 

December MTFP Update 
PROVISIONAL 

To provide an update on the budget setting 
process for 2020/21 and beyond. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 Yes 

December Vale, Valleys and Cardiff 
Adoption Collaborative 
(VVC) Annual Report 
(2018/19) and 2019/20 
Merthyr Tydfil update 
 

Information provided to Cabinet in respect 
of the Annual performance of 18/19. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 

Scrutiny will be 
invited to 

review this 
report 

No 

December  School Reorganisation – 3 
to 16 Voluntary Aided 
School 
 

To provide details of objections received to 
the 3-16 proposal, and the local authority’s 
response, following publication of the 
Statutory Notice on Monday 14th October 
2019  

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton  

 
(Learning) 

No Yes 

P
age 24



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 17 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

January 
 

MTFP Update 
PROVISIONAL 

To provide an update on the budget setting 
process for 2020/21 and beyond. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

Maybe 
 

Yes 

January Procurement Quarterly 
Monitoring report – 
Information Report 

To provide Cabinet with details of tender 
awards 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 No 

January Welsh Government 30 
Hour Childcare Offer – 
Update 

Update on the implementation of the Welsh 
Government 30hour Childcare offer for 
working parents. 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

No No 

January Youth Service 
Performance – 
Attainment Audit 
Jan 

To receive a report on the performance of 
young people engaged with the youth 
service and undertaking examinations 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

Yes No 

January Performance at Key Stage 
4 – to include the Capped 
9 measure and 
attendance 
 

To consider the performance  of young 
people in at end of KS4 
To consider attendance and exclusion 
figures for schools academic year 2018/19 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

Yes No 

P
age 25



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 18 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

February Change and Well-being 
Programme - Quarter 3 
 

An update regarding the change and well-
being programme for quarter 3 

Non-
exempt 

 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

No No 

February Budget Consultation To provide Cabinet with feedback from 
residents on the budget consultation 
process 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 Yes 

February Revenue Budget 
Monitoring 2019/20 – 
Quarter 3 

To provide Cabinet with the projected 
revenue budgetary position for the 2019/20 
financial year as part of the budget 
monitoring process 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 No 

February Capital Monitoring 
2019/20 – Quarter 3 

To provide Cabinet with the projected 
capital budgetary position for the 2019/20 
financial year as part of the budget 
monitoring process 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 No 

P
age 26



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 19 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

February MTFP Update 
(PROVISIONAL) 

To provide an update on the budget setting 
process for 2020/21 and beyond. 
 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 Yes 

February ISB Funding Reductions 
2019-2020 
 

To receive recommendations from Schools 
Forum 

Non-
Exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

No No 

February 
 

ISB Formula Funding 
Review 
 

To share the outcomes of formula review 
and consider implications for schools 
funding 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

Yes – 
November 

2019 

No 

February Tackling Poverty – 
Progress on Workstreams 

To provide an update on the workstreams 
to support the tackling poverty agenda 

Non-
Exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

No No 

February 21st Century Schools – 
Community Learning 
Centres - Update 

Update on the two capital development 
applications to the 21st Century Community 
Learning Centres Grant 
 

Non-
Exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

No No 

February Early Years Strategy To consider progress against the current EY 
strategy and where we need to go next 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

No No 

P
age 27



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 20 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

March Annual Equality Report 
 

An annual report setting out and reporting 
on actions against the Council’s equality 
plan. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

  

March Council Tax/NDR Write 
Off Report 

To write off irretrievable Council Tax and 
NDR in accordance with the FPR. 

Exempt Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

  

March Sundry Debt Write Off 
Report 

To write off irretrievable Council Tax and 
NDR in accordance with the FPR. 

Exempt Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

 Yes 

March MTFP Update 
PROVISIONAL 

To provide an update on the budget setting 
process for 2020/21 and beyond. 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor 
Andrew Barry 

 
(Governance & 

Corporate 
Services) 

 

Potentially Yes 

P
age 28



 

 
www.merthyr.gov.uk        Page 21 of 21 

Month Report Title Purpose of Report (Summary) Exempt
/ Non-

exempt 
 

Lead 
Cabinet 
Member 

Scrutiny 
Consideration 

Yes/No 

Council 
Yes/No 

March Progress on Community 
Zone Capital Investment 
 

To receive information on the Community 
Zone activity 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

No No 

April Annual Complaints 
Report (2019/20) 
End of year update 

Information to be provided to Cabinet in 
respect of complaints and compliments 
received in 2019/20 

Non-
exempt 

Councillor Chris 
Davies 

 
(Social 

Services) 
 

Yes No 

April Parenting Performance 
and Strategy – Update 
 

To consider the Councils Parenting Strategy Non-
Exempt 

Councillor Lisa 
Mytton 

 
(Learning) 

 

No No 

 
 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

TRANSPORT INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 City Deal in collaboration with Welsh Government and Transport for Wales, has 

identified a proposed integrated programme of local future transport schemes that fit 
within a wider Metro Plus programme.   

 
1.2  The proposed package of schemes totals some £50m.  Initial work on the 

programme to date, demonstrates that a £15m contribution from City Deal (proposed 
Infrastructure Fund), should lever in a potential £15m co-investment from Welsh 
Government’s Local Transport Fund.             

 
1.3  As reported to Cabinet in April 2019 Merthyr Tydfil CBC submitted an application for 

£4.1m to the Local Transport Fund, on behalf of the region for the years 2019/20.    
 
1.4  Merthyr Tydfil CBC has the opportunity, and the regional endorsement of the 

Regional Transport Authority, to lead on the programme of works across the ten 
Local Authorities over the coming years. 

 
1.5  A further Cabinet Report in April 2019 outlined that on 1st May 2018 the Cabinet 

Secretary for Finance announced £60 million to support active travel schemes as 
part of the Wales Infrastructure Investment Plan.  

 
1.6  A series of projects aligned to the Merthyr Tydfil Active Travel Programme will be 

delivered across 19/20 and 20/21.  
 

Date Written 27th November 2019 ** 

Report Author Zoe Thomas / Chris Long  

Service Area Community Regeneration  

Committee Division Cabinet  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt  

Committee Date 18th December 2019  

Page 31

Agenda Item 4



1.7  In December 2018, Cabinet approved the indicative allocation of funding for £9.8m 
from the Local Transport Fund for the development of the Merthyr Tydfil Strategic 
Interchange: Bus Station.   

 
1.8  In order for Merthyr Tydfil CBC to successfully manage the regional and local 

implementation of schemes and to develop any future projects, it is necessary to 
recruit a Strategic Infrastructure Programme Manager on a fixed term contract for a 3 
year period from January 2020 until December 2022.   

 
1.9  The post will be partly funded through the Merthyr Tydfil Strategic Interchange 

Project: Bus Station funded through the Welsh Government’s Local Transport Fund 
and remainder of the employment contract will be funded through the project 
management fees of all other associated projects that are currently funded through 
the Local Transport Fund and Metro Plus.   

 
1.10 This will be achieved by Merthyr Tydfil CBC capitalising on the opportunity to secure 

project management fees through Welsh Government, from claiming core officer 
time through work undertaken to support the delivery of schemes.   

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1  The appointment of the Strategic Infrastructure Programme Manager and the 

proposed method for securing project management fees to support the financing of 
this post be approved. 

 
2.2 The holding in reserve for the above post together with other associated strategic 

development costs be approved.  
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  
 
3.1  The South Wales Metro is a major infrastructure project and signals an ambitious 

‘modal shift’ in connecting people and places and enhancing the functional economic 
geography of the region. It represents forward thinking on the future of mobility and 
its mission it to provide contemporary public transport that will promote behavioural 
change.  

 
3.2 City Deal in collaboration with Welsh Government and Transport for Wales, has 

identified a proposed integrated programme of local future transport schemes that fit 
within a wider Metro Plus programme.  These proposals have been drawn from the 
priorities surfaced by individual Councils and mirror the ‘Metro spine’ – creating both 
short and longer-term opportunities for place-shaping. They bring together a diverse 
range of projects, spanning regeneration, town centres, housing and economic 
growth, with transport as the central component or ‘enabler’ in allowing growth, 
expansion and opportunity to be unlocked.  

 
3.3 The proposed package of schemes totals some £50m.  Initial work on the 

programme to date, demonstrates that a £15m contribution from City Deal (proposed 
Infrastructure Fund), should lever in a potential £15m co-investment from Welsh 
Government’s Local Transport Fund.             

 

Page 32



3.4 As reported to Cabinet in April 2019 Merthyr Tydfil CBC submitted an application for 
£4.1m to the Local Transport Fund, on behalf of the region for the years 2019/20.    
 

3.5 Merthyr Tydfil CBC has the opportunity, and the regional endorsement of the 
Regional Transport Authority, to lead on the programme of works across the ten 
Local Authorities over the coming years. 

 
3.6 A further Cabinet Report in April 2019 outlined that on 1st May 2018 the Cabinet 

Secretary for Finance announced £60 million to support active travel schemes as 
part of the Wales Infrastructure Investment Plan and the funding would be available 
over the next 2 years, creating new active travel routes across Wales, connecting 
people’s homes to schools, jobs and their local community with the aim of 
encouraging more people to walk or cycle. 

 
3.7 A series of projects aligned to the Merthyr Tydfil Active Travel Programme will be 

delivered across 19/20 and 20/21.  
 
3.8  In December 2018, Cabinet approved the indicative allocation of funding for £9.8m 

from the Local Transport Fund for the development of the Merthyr Tydfil Strategic 
Interchange: Bus Station.  The funding is available across 19/20 and 20/21. 

 

4.0 CURRENT  POSITION 
 

4.1 In order for Merthyr Tydfil CBC to successfully manage the regional and local 
implementation of schemes and to develop any future projects, it is necessary to 
recruit a Strategic Infrastructure Programme Manager.  

 
4.2  The Strategic Infrastructure Programme Manager will be employed on a fixed term 

contract for a 3 year period from January 2020 until December 2022.   
 
4.3  The position is currently out to advert both internally and externally and it is 

anticipated that the appointment will be made in December 2019 with the appointed 
Manager commencing the role in the New Year.  

 
4.4  The post will be partly funded through the Merthyr Tydfil Strategic Interchange 

Project: Bus Station funded through the Welsh Government’s Local Transport Fund 
and remainder of the employment contract will be funded through the project 
management fees of all other associated projects that are funded through the Local 
Transport Fund and Metro Plus.   

 
4.5 This will be achieved through Merthyr Tydfil CBC capitalising on the opportunity to 

secure project management fees through Welsh Government, from claiming core 
officer time through work undertaken to support the delivery of schemes.   

 
4.7  The collation of fees through core staff commenced in April 2019 and will be 

reserved and utilised towards the salary of the Strategic Infrastructure Programme 
Manager.  This exercise will be repeated across 20/21 and 21/22 also.  

 
4.8  Timesheets will be collated for submission with Welsh Government claims to 

evidence the support provided to project delivery.  

Page 33



 
4.9 It is anticipated that the value secured through project management fees over the 

three year fixed term period will be sufficient to cover the post for this duration as 
well as any additional strategic development costs.  

 
 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
5.1  There are no financial implications for Merthyr Tydfil CBC.  The post will be partly 

funded through the Merthyr Tydfil Strategic Interchange Project: Bus Station funded 
through the Welsh Government’s Local Transport Fund and remainder of the 
employment contract will be funded through the project management fees of all other 
projects that are currently and will be funded through the Local Transport Fund and 
Metro Plus.   

 
5.2  There are a number of core funded staff that are able to contribute time towards the 

delivery of projects and an exercise has been undertaken to calculate a percentage 
of time for each associated officer to ensure sufficient revenue is generated to 
support the financing of the role until December 2022.  

 
 

6.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
 4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
2 of 10 0 of 10 8 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are that the delivery of a transport infrastructure programme 
will meet the Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives and Sustainable Development 
Principles through targeting economic growth and creating improved environments and 
healthier communities.  The project will have a positive effect on the economy, socially 

Page 34



and on heritage.    
 
No negative impacts have been identified. 
 

 
  

 
ALYN OWEN  
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE   

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION  

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) – Funding 
Applications  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for Community Infrastructure 

Levy funding for three projects; the purchase of an additional kerbside recycling 
vehicle; the refurbishment and extension of an area of open space at the Shingrig 
Estate, Trelewis; and the refurbishment of a playground in Heolgerrig and 
associated engineering works 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The recommendations of the MTCBC CIL Steering Group, to award funding to the 

three applications listed in paragraph 3.4 of this report, be approved. 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council implemented the Community Infrastructure 

Levy on 2nd June 2014, following approval of the CIL Charging Schedule and an 
examination by the Planning Inspectorate. 

 
3.2 The Community Infrastructure Levy is a charge that the Council levies on 

residential development, and some types of commercial development in the County 
Borough. The charges are based on the size, type and location of development. 

Date Written 27th November 2019 

Report Author Judith Jones/ Craig Watkins 

Service Area Planning and Countryside 

Committee Division Cabinet 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 18th December 2019 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5



The money raised is used to fund infrastructure required to support development in 
Merthyr Tydfil. 

 
3.3 In order to administer the monies received through CIL, a Steering Group has been 

established comprising of Officers and Councillors (relevant Portfolio Members), in 
order to consider schemes submitted for CIL funding. 

 
3.4 The Steering Group met on the 15th November 2019 to consider three applications 

for CIL Funding: 
 

 £75,600 to purchase an additional kerbside recycling vehicle; 

 £35,000 towards the refurbishment and extension of an area of open space 
at the Shingrig Estate, Trelewis; 

 £33,620 towards the refurbishment of a playground in Heolgerrig and 
associated engineering works. 

 
3.5 The Steering Group assessed all three applications in accordance with the CIL 

Infrastructure Assessment Criteria, and concluded that a recommendation be made 
that Cabinet approve the funding for the three applications listed above. Full details 
of the applications can be found in the background papers of this report. 

 
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
4.1 The funding, totalling £144,220, will be awarded from the Community Infrastructure 

Levy, the current balance of which is £146,601. 
 
 

5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
10 of 10 0 of 10 0 of 10 

Page 38



4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impact(s) against: 

 The Well Being Objectives is that the CIL will support the provision of infrastructure and 
facilities that can directly assist in the implementation of the four well being objectives. 

 The Sustainable Development Principles are that the CIL assists in the long term 
planning of infrastructure provision in the County Borough, which increases the likelihood 
of prevention taking place. 

 The Protected Characteristics and Welsh Language is that the CIL will facilitate the 
delivery of services and infrastructure that can be used by all. 

 Biodiversity are the CIL can be directly spent on directly enhancing biodiversity and 
ecosystem resilience when improving open space provision across the County Borough 

 
There are no negative impacts identified. 
 

 

 
JUDITH JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER NEIGHBOURHOOD 
SERVICES 

DAVID HUGHES 
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES, 
PLANNING AND COUNTRYSIDE 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
CIL Steering Group panel 

scoresheet 
 
 

Applications for CIL Funding 
 

 
15

th
 November 2019 

 
 
 

October 2019 

 
Planning and Countryside 

 
 
 

Planning and Countryside 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

OFF STREET PARKING PLACES ORDER - 
AMENDMENT 20 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 On 21st July 2016 planning permission was granted for the construction of a new bus 

station and public realm improvements within Merthyr Tydfil town centre.  This will 
include the provision of hard and soft landscaping and associated works.  The 
footprint of the new bus station and public realm improvements include the Swan 
Street car park.  As such the car park at Swan Street will no longer be available for 
use.   

 
1.2 Construction of the new bus station and associated work is now underway.  In order 

for the planning permission to be implemented fully it is necessary to remove the 
Swan Street Car Park from the Off Street Parking Places Order.  

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The Off Street Parking Places Order is amended to remove Swan Street Car Park 

from the Order be approved and the necessary statutory processes be followed. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council are able to make ‘Parking Orders’ in 

exercising its powers under Section 32, 35 and Part IV of Schedule 9 of the Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (as amended), the provisions of the Traffic Management 
Act 2004 and all other enabling powers. 

Date Written 28th November 2019 * 

Report Author Geraint Morgan & Gregg Edwards 

Service Area Corporate Services 

Committee Division Portfolio 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt  

Committee Date 18th December 2019 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



 
3.2 Cabinet Members will be aware that planning permission was granted under 

planning permission P/16/0048 on 21st July 2016 for the construction of a new bus 
station and public realm improvements.  This will be done through the provision of 
hard and soft landscaping and associated works. A section of the development lies 
on land which is currently being utilised as the Swan Street car park.  It must be 
acknowledged that this car park is currently being used by the developers whilst 
construction of other sections of the new bus station and associated works are being 
undertaken.  As such Swan Street is not currently operating as a car park.   

 
3.3 There are 24 disabled bays at Swan Street car park. The Council is satisfied that 

there are more than adequate disabled bays within other car parks which lie within a 
close proximity to the Swan Street Car Park (i.e. Gilar Street (10 disabled bays); St 
Tydfil (16 disabled bays); River Taff (8 disabled bays); Tramroadside car parks (3 
disabled bays)).  Advisory guidelines state that car park provision exceeding 50 
spaces should have 4% reserved specifically for people with disabilities with smaller 
car parks having one space available.  This is not a statutory requirement, but we 
monitor usage and provision and our operation more than meets these guidelines.   

 
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There will be a cost of advertising the Order which stands at approximately £1,000 

and will be met out of the 2019/2020 budget. This cost will be met through the 
finances for the bus station project.  

 
 

5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
5.1 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
1 of 4 0 of 4 3 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Page 42



Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are the development of the new bus station and the continued 
provision of parking spaces reserved specifically for people with disabilities. 
 

 
 
ELLIS COOPER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  
 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

PART STOPPING UP OF ADOPTED HIGHWAY 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Significant highway improvements in the Heolgerrig area have taken place since the 
 1990s. One of these improvements was the construction of the A470 dual 
 carriageway in the mid-1990s.  As part of the process for the construction of the dual 
 carriageway a section of local road which ran from Upper Colliers Row to Llwyn 
 Celynen was extinguished.  This led to a cul-de-sac being created on the western 
 side of the current dual carriageway.  The southern-most section of this cul-de-sac is 
 not required for vehicular access and this section is now being used for fly-tipping. 
 This section of the road network needs to be stopped-up to vehicular traffic. 
 Pedestrian, equestrian and pedal cyclist access is however still required. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The necessary legal processes and consultation to allow for the section of road 

between point A and Point B on the plan attached to be stopped up to vehicular 
traffic and thereafter the stopping up process itself be undertaken.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Significant highway improvements in the Heolgerrig area have taken place since the 
 1990s. One of these improvements was the installation of the A470 dual 
 carriageway.  

 

Date Written 25th November 2019 

Report Author Geraint Morgan & Gerald 
Coughlin 

Service Area Engineering & Legal 

Committee Division Portfolio 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt  

Committee Date 18th December 2019 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



3.2  As part of the legal procedures undertaken at that time to facilitate the highway 
 improvement a section of the road which ran from Upper Colliers Row to Llwyn 
 Celynen was stopped up and a new vehicular highway was created which runs 
 under the A470 (Aberdare Road). A pedestrian route was also created to allow 
 pedestrian access from Llywn Celynen to Upper Colliers Row. These highway 
 improvements were undertaken by the then Welsh Office (being the highway 
 authority for trunk roads). 

 

 
3.3  Subsequent to the stopping up of the said section of highway a cul-de-sac was 

 created which now leads in a general southerly direction from Lower Colliers Row to 
 a dead end.  This cul-de-sac is depicted on the plan attached and is labelled A – B – 
 C. 

 
3.4  Councillors will be aware that the section that leads in a general westerly direction 

 from Point C is prevalent to fly-tipping.  Officers have surveyed the road and are of 
 the view that the section between Point A and Point B is no longer required for 
 vehicular traffic. The section between Point B and Point C needs to remain a 
 highway that can be used by vehicles as this is the only way for vehicles to access 
 the allotments. 

 

 
3.5  Officers are if the view that horse riders, pedal cyclists and pedestrians should 

 continue to use this section of track and that the route be recorded as a bridleway. 
 Officers are of the view that these classes of use still subsist and therefore could not 
 be extinguished.  

 
3.6  To regularise the proposal it will be necessary to initiate the process to extinguish 

 highway vehicular rights over this section of road. This involves firstly consulting with 
 Utilities Companies to determine what apparatus exist in the road and to determine if 
 they have any objections to the vehicular rights being extinguished.  It is considered 
 unlikely that any apparatus lie in this section of the road.  If objections are received 
 they usually concern the need to move such apparatus before the extinguishment 
 occurs.  As it is proposed that this route will become a highway of bridleway status it 
 is even more unlikely that objection will occur as the Utilities Companies will still be 
 able to access the highway to carry out any works that could become necessary.   

 

 
3.7 Notices will be posted in the London Gazette and local newspapers and also placed 
 on site advising of the intended vehicular extinguishment. This will be followed by an 
 application to the Magistrates Court to obtain an order for vehicular extinguishment 
 under s116 Highways Act 1980.       

 
  

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
4.1 The Authority will be responsible for paying all costs necessary to advertise the 
 intention to extinguish vehicular rights and any court fees associated with doing so. 
 The Authority would also be responsible for the cost of any Public Utility apparatus 

Page 46



 that would need to be removed.  However given the nature of the extinguishment it is 
 highly unlikely that any public utility apparatus exist. 

 
4.2  All costs associated with advertisements and legal work in making the appropriate 

 order will be funded via the departmental budget/BIFFA funding 
 
 

5 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are …  
 
The Well Being objectives are that the proposal will remove safety concerns following 
illegal activities for the benefit of the public of all ages that will assist in developing the 
environment and safer communities and supporting people.  
 
The Sustainable Development Principles are that the proposal will give opportunity to 
encourage more activity that leads to better physical health, promoting healthier 
behaviours and increased levels of physical activity. More physical activity will result in 
lesser dependency in motorised transport.  
 
The main negative impacts are … 
 
No negative impacts have been identified against the Well-Being Objectives, the 
Sustainable Development Principles, Protected Characteristics, Welsh Language and 
Biodiversity . 
 
 

Page 47



 
 
 
 
 

 

 
ELLIS COOPER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Stopping Up report 
 
 

25th November 2019 Legal and engineering 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

NO 

 
 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

Page 48



Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

School Reorganisation – 3 to 16 Voluntary Aided 
School 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 At a meeting on 11th September 2019, Cabinet approved the following 
recommendations:- 

 The proposal to close St Aloysius Roman Catholic (RC) Primary, St Illtyd’s RC  
 Primary and St Mary’s RC Primary Schools and Bishop Hedley RC High 
 School creating a 3-16 all through Catholic education provision with effect 
 from 1st September 2020 is amended to 1st September 2022. 

 The proposal is progressed by issuing an appropriate Statutory Notice, which  is 
 in accordance with the process outlined in Welsh Government legislative 
 guidance (School Organisation Code 011/2018). 
1.2 This report provides details of objections received, and the local authority’s 

response, following publication of the Statutory Notice on Monday 14th October 2019 
for a 28-day statutory objection period. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION that 
 

2.1 The outcome of the statutory objection period outlined in the attached draft Objection 
Report (Appendix 1) be considered and final approval for the proposal to be 
implemented, in accordance with the School Organisation Code 011/2018 be given. 

Date Written * 27th November 2019 

Report Author Sue Walker 

Service Area Learning 

Committee Division Strategic 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 18th December 2019 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



 

 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 At a meeting on 25th July 2018, Cabinet approved the proposal to commence formal 
consultation on the potential closure of St Aloysius Roman Catholic (RC) Primary, St 
Illtyd’s RC Primary and St Mary’s RC Primary Schools and Bishop Hedley RC High 
School creating a 3-16 all through Catholic education provision with effect from 1st 
September 2019.  

 
3.2 A public Consultation was undertaken during the period 3rd September – 14th 

October 2018 and a report prepared that provided details of the outcome.  This 
report was shared with Cabinet on 21st November 2018 and after discussion it was 
agreed that further consultation should be undertaken naming the proposed sites for 
the new school and this was held during the period 29th April – 30th June 2019. 
 

3.3 At a meeting of Cabinet on 11th September 2019, Cabinet considered the outcome of 
the second consultation and approval was given for the publication of a Statutory 
Notice to progress the proposal to the next stage.  
 

4.0 STATUTORY NOTICE 
 

4.1 A Statutory Notice was published on 14th October 2019 and the 28-day statutory 
period to receive objections subsequently ended on 10th November 2019. 
 

4.2 The School Organisation Code requires local authorities to produce an Objection 
Report at the conclusion of the statutory objection period, which provides the local 
authority’s response to any objections received.  Cabinet is required to consider any 
objections and make a determination on the proposal.   
 

4.3 One objection to the proposal was received and the local authority’s response is 
included in the attached draft Objections Report – see Appendix 1.  The objection 
was conscientiously considered alongside the arguments in respect of the proposal 
and with regard to factors set out in section 1.3 – 1.14 of the Code.    

 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 If this school reorganisation proposal is agreed there is potential to make savings 
and the details of this will be shared with Cabinet at a future date. 
 

6.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 

Objectives  
1 of 4 0 of 4 3 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 

Principles - How have you 

considered the five ways of 

working: 

 Long term 

 5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

Page 52



 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 

Welsh Language) 
3 of 10 0 of 10 7 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 

The main positive impacts are that the proposal will meet the Merthyr Tydfil Wellbeing Objectives 
and the Sustainable Development Principles. The proposal will have a positive effect on the 
‘Best Start to Life’ Wellbeing Objective and on three of the protected characteristic groups. 
 
There are no negative impacts. 
 
At this stage, in phase one of the proposal, there is neither a positive or negative affect on 
Biodiversity. This may change if/when the proposal moves to phase two (school relocation). 
 

 
 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER, LEARNING 

LISA MYTTON 
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

School Organisation 
Code, 011/2018 

Nov 2018 https://gov.wales/school-organisation-code 
 

Consultation Documents August 2018 
April 2019 

Learning Department 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the 
Council’s Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 

Page 53

https://gov.wales/school-organisation-code


 

Appendix 1 

 
 

OBJECTION REPORT 
 
 

PROPOSAL:  TO CREATE A SINGLE 3-16 CATHOLIC SCHOOL WITHIN MERTHYR TYDFIL 

BY DISCONTINUING ST ALOYSIUS RC, THE FEDERATION OF ST ILLTYD’S RC, ST 

MARY’S RC AND ALSO BISHOP HEDLEY RC SCHOOLS AND CREATING A SINGLE ALL-

THROUGH 3-16 CATHOLIC EDUCATION SCHOOL 

 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE OBJECTION REPORT  

This report is prepared in accordance with the Welsh Government’s School Organisation Code, 
statutory document 011/2018.  Its purpose is to: 
 

 inform the outcome of the publication of the Statutory Notice for the proposal to create a 

single, 3-16 Catholic School within Merthyr Tydfil, which was published on 14th October 

2019 for a period of 28 days; and 

 provide details of objections received and the local authority’s response to them.  

 
2.0 THE STATUTORY NOTICE  

The Statutory Notice to progress this proposal, which was published on 14th October 2019 is 
provided below:- 
 

MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH  COUNCIL 
 

Notice is given in accordance with section 43 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 
2013 and the School Organisation Code that Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, having 
consulted such persons as required, proposes to discontinue the following voluntary aided schools: 
 

 St Aloysius RC Primary School, Cedar Way, Gurnos Estate, Merthyr Tydfil CF47 9PA 

 St Illtyd’s RC Primary School, Rocky Road, Dowlais, Merthyr Tydfil CF48 3BT 

 St Mary’s RC Primary School,  Caedraw Road, Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8HA; and 

 Bishop Hedley High School, Gwaunfarren Road, Penydarren, Merthyr Tydfil CF47 9AN 

Page 54



 

 
Notice is given in accordance with sections 41 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 
2013 and the School Organisation Code that the Catholic Archdiocese of Cardiff and Merthyr Tydfil 
County Borough Council, having consulted such persons as required, proposes to  establish a new 
Catholic School for young people aged 3 to 16 and would be classified as English Medium, Voluntary 
Aided.  The new school site is yet to be agreed.  ‘Voluntary Aided’ category schools are church 
schools and the Archdiocese contributes to the building costs and has a substantial influence on the 
running of the school.  The Governing Body employs the staff and sets the admissions criteria.   
 
If the current proposal is agreed and implemented the current schools will close on 31st August 
2022.  The governance structure of the new all through school will start as of 1st September 2022.  In 
effect, the 3-16 school will be established in the existing schools and will transfer to the new building 
when ready.   
 
The primary section of the school will be for 525 pupils, therefore a 2.5 form entry with an admission 
number of 75 pupils.  The secondary section of the school will be for 600 pupils therefore a 4-form 
entry with an admission number of 120 pupils.  Initially, there will be no impact on pupils’ journeys 
as a result of the Proposal and available walking routes to school will remain the same.  When the 
site of the new build is decided parents will be informed about the walking routes. 
  
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council undertook a period of consultation before deciding to 
publish this proposal.   A Consultation Report containing a summary of the issues raised by 
consultees, the proposer’s responses and Estyn’s full response is available to view on Merthyr Tydfil 
County Borough Council’s website at the following address: 
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/council/have-your-say/3-16-report/?lang=en-GB& 
 
It is proposed to implement the proposal on 1st September 2022. 
 
Within a period of one 28 days of the date on which the proposal was published, that is to say by 
10th November 2019,  any person may object to the proposals.  Objections should be sent to:-  Chief 
Officer (Learning), Learning Department, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, Unit 5 Pentrebach, 
Merthyr Tydfil CF48 4TQ.  
 
Signed:    (SUE WALKER, CHIEF OFFICER (LEARNING)) 
 
For the Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council. 
Date:  14th October 2019 
 
EXPLANATORY NOTE OF THE PROPOSALS (not part of the Statutory Notice)- The Council proposes 
to discontinue St Aloysius RC, the Federation of St Illtyd’s RC and St Mary’s RC primary schools and 
also Bishop Hedley High schools to create an ‘all through’ 3 to 16 school based across the existing 
sites of the schools.  If the current proposal is agreed and implemented the current schools would 
close on 31st August 2022.  The governance structure of the new all through school would start as of 
1st September 2022 In effect the 3-16 school will be established in the existing schools and will 
transfer to the new building when it is ready.  Following consultation with the Engineering, 
Planning, Highways and Road Safety departments, the two sites that will be considered are a new 
build on land on the west side of the Galon Uchaf road, south of the playing fields or a re-build on 
one of the Bishop Hedley High School sites.   

Page 55

https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/council/have-your-say/3-16-report/?lang=en-GB&


 

It is estimated that the new school building will be ready by 2023/2024. Merthyr Tydfil County 
Borough Council is permitted to publish proposals to discontinue a voluntary aided school or 
foundation school; as are the Governors.  As such the formal publication of the closure of the four 
existing schools may be carried out by the Council following the correct statutory procedure.  The 
proposal to establish a new voluntary aided school has been published by the Catholic Archdiocese 
of Cardiff in partnership with Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council.   
 
3.0 DETAILS OF OBJECTIONS RECEIVED 

Anyone wishing to make an objection to this proposal was able to do so.  To be considered as a 
statutory objection, objections had to be made in writing or by email, and sent to the Council within 28 
days of the date on which the proposals were published. This is referred to as the objection period.   
 

One statutory objection was received by the published closing time and date. 
 
4.0 THE OBJECTION AND OUR RESPONSE 

Reason for the objection 
 
“I am objecting based on the grounds that we do not what the site will be  – how are people 

supposed to come to a decision if they do not know all the facts.  Saying  its either the “existing 

site(s?)” or the “greeny” site is not good enough.  Even if were told it was to be one of the 

existing sites(phase 1 or phase 2), again we do not know which site it would be.  There are far too 

many “vague” and “open to change” variables that are not detailed in the proposal.  There are a 

lot of parents who are not happy with the idea of a single school site, and see the obvious 

solution being to reuse both the existing separate buildings (ie BHHS phase2 for the younger 

pupils, and phase 1 for the older pupils) and do what has happened at Afon Taf school which has 

been modernised etc.” 

Local Authority Response 

We have been clear that no firm site has been secured, as this is the consultation stage in respect of 
proposals that have not yet been agreed; to have presented firm, definite plans at such an early 
stage of the process would have given the impression that we are pre-empting the decision.  In 
addition, to have presented finalised plans at this stage would have incurred considerable 
expenditure which may be wasted should the proposal be rejected. 
 
Prior to any build the appropriate feasibility studies would be carried out in respect of the 
suitability of each site for a school building and traffic management.  The new school will be 
designed to meet all the current health and safety guidance and there will be huge consideration to 
the safeguarding of all learners within the new build. 
 
3-16 schools are a relatively new concept across Wales and it is understandable that parents will 
have concerns over how their children will be supported within this structure.   
 
Further consideration over the two sites currently proposed will take place over the next twelve 
months.  It has been agreed to take the final decision back to council before the end of the current 
academic year. 

Page 56



 

 
5.0 CONCLUSION 

It is important to note that this is the draft response of the local authority which is being provided 
to decision makers for discussion and determination.   
 
A final view and objection report will be published before the end of seven days beginning with the 
day of determination. 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Fostering Service Post Inspection Action Plan 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report provides Cabinet with information about the Merthyr Tydfil Children‟s 

Services Post Inspection Action Plan for the Fostering service. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION that 
 
2.1 The contents of the report be debated and noted.  
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) undertook an inspection of services for children in 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (CBC) during April and May 2018.  
 
3.2 The inspection considered all areas of the Fostering service.  It was a full announced 

inspection and was undertaken concurrently with an inspection of the Local 
Authority‟s Children‟s Services department.  The inspection was carried out by two 
inspectors over six days. 

 
3.3 The information used for the inspection was obtained by the following methods: 
 

Consultation with: 

 A group of 7 foster carers. 

 A group of 4 children. 

 The social workers of the Fostering team. 

Date Written 29th November 2019  

Report Author Tracy Welch 

Service Area Children‟s Services  

Committee Division Cabinet 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 18th December 2019 

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



 
 

 Children‟s case responsible Social Workers. 

 The Chair of the Fostering Panel. 

 The Fostering Team Manager / Panel Adviser and Head of Service / ADM. 
 

The inspectors viewed: 

 Case files of 8 children and 8 foster carers-linked. 

 Recruitment records for four staff / panel members. 

 Records of the three most recent panel meetings. 

 Records of team meeting records. 

 Records of the appraisal of staff and the Chair of the Fostering Panel. 

 The Statement of Purpose. 

 Quality of Care Review report. 

 Panel report. 

 Data relating to Foster Carers‟ training. 

 Attended the Fostering Panel. 

 Questionnaires were sent to: 

 20 Foster Carers and children placed with them.  None were returned. 

 All panel members.  4 were returned. 

 All members of the Fostering team.  None were returned though they shared 
their views with us in person. 

 
3.4 On 5 October 2018, CIW published their report having identified the following        

strengths and areas for development or improvement: 
 

Strengths   Children are cared for by Foster Carers that are well trained and 
supported and were clear about the needs of children as well as 
their own roles and responsibilities. 

 Children are cared for by Foster Carers who are generally well 
supported. 

 The service is committed to recruiting and supporting Foster Carers 
and improving placement choice for children.  

 The „2018-19 Foster Carer Recruitment and Retention Strategy‟ 
document and „Recruitment Activity Calendar‟ provided evidence of 
the Authority‟s commitment to improving placement choice for 
children. 

 Foster Care agreements were in place as well as Foster Placement 
agreements to make clear the purpose and objectives of children‟s 
placements. 

 Safe Care agreements were in place to minimise risks associated 
with children‟s care. 

 Foster Carers had access to a wide range of training via a joint 
training department and the 2018-19 Cwm Taf training calendar 
provided evidence of that. 

 The „Confidence in Care‟ twelve week training programme and the 
„Fostering Well–being project‟ facilitated by „The Fostering Network‟ 
had been well received and that some Foster Carers were training 
as „Fostering Pioneers‟ to provide support, advice and training to 
other carers. 

 

Page 60



 
 

Areas for 
Development 

1. Information is included in the Statement of Purpose about CIW 
„concerns‟ processes and about the Quality of Care review process 
and how it‟s reports can be accessed. 

2. The Local Authority considers Welsh Government‟s „More Than Just 
Words‟ strategic guidance for Welsh Language in Social Care and 
that information is included in the Statement of Purpose, Children‟s 
guides and Quality of Care review. 

3. Report about any provision of Fostering Services in the Welsh 
language. 

4. Information in Foster Carer files about their terms of approval is 
consistent and accurate. 

5. Quality assurance functions of the Fostering Panel are fulfilled; in 
particular in relation to connected persons assessments, and to 
monitor the range of Foster Carers available in comparison with the 
needs of children. 

6. That data and analysis of the intended placement and well–being 
outcomes of children placed within the Fostering Service is included 
in future Quality of Care review reports. 

7. Information regarding the education of children placed within the 
Fostering service is included in future Quality of Care review 
reports. 

8. Consideration is given to the risk of „identifying information‟ being 
included in future Quality of Care review reports. 

9. Any issues raised by Foster Carers and staff about the impact of 
communication with senior managers are discussed within existing 
systems for Foster Carer supervision and support meetings and 
within staff supervision and team meetings. 

10. Arrangements are made to ensure that any necessary 
unannounced supervisory visits are made to Foster Carers. 

11. Arrangements are made to ensure that any necessary delegated 
authority agreements are provided to Foster Carers. 

 

 

4.0 POST INSPECTION ACTION PLAN 
 
4.1  Some of the recommendations made within the Inspection report were remedied 

within a very short time period and did not require inclusion in the post inspection 
report.  However, to ensure that these tasks are not lost they are monitored via 
internal processes such as supervision, file audits and managerial oversight. 

 
4.2  The post inspection action plan can be found at Appendix 1.  This charts the 

progress made and provides a timeline for work on-going to ensure the continued 
progress and development of the Fostering service.   

 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 All of the work outlined above, has been carried out within existing budgetary limits.  
 

Page 61



 
 

 

6.0  INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
6.1   

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
3 of 4 0 of 4 1 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
5 of 10 0 of 10 5 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are collaboration, long term planning and improvement to the 
best start in life for CLA.  No negative impact has been identified.  
 

 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 
 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
                CABINET MEMBER FOR 

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Scrutiny Committee 
Report CIW Children‟s 
Services.  

Various Unit 5  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 

Page 62



 
 

Appendix 1 
 

CIW Area of non-
compliance/ for 
Improvement  

Outcome  What needs to 
happen? 

By who and by 
when? 

RAG  How will we know?  
 

Progress 

Systems for monitoring 
the educational 
attendance, progress 
and attainment of 
children.  
(Regulation 16 (2) (a)) 

The educational 
outcomes of 
children are 
monitored and 
improved. 

Clear sharing of 
information 
between LACES 
and Supervising 
Social Worker on a 
termly basis. 
 

Principal Officer - 
Permanence and 
LACES Team 
Manager. 

Green Information will be reported 
through the Quality of Care 
report. 

Achieved  
 

Systems for monitoring, 
reviewing and improving 
the quality of care 
provided by the 
Fostering service. 
(Regulation 42) 

Quality of care 
provided by the 
Fostering service is 
well recorded and 
communicated. 

Review format of 
Quality of Care 
report and agree 
responsibilities for 
completion. 

Principal Officer - 
Permanence. 

Green Quality of Care report will 
fulfil the requirements of the 
regulations. 

Achieved  

A record in the form of a 
register in respect of 
each child placed within 
the Fostering service. 
(Regulation 22 (a) (b) 
(c) (d) (e) (f) (g)) 

WCCIS will supply 
a register of 
children placed 
within the Fostering 
service. 

WCCIS to be set 
up to capture the 
required data.  
Data to be 
systematically 
input to the 
database. 

Principal Officer - 
Permanence/ 
Business Support. 

Green CLA Data will be up to date 
and accessible.  

 Achieved  

Recruitment records 
that include evidence to 
demonstrate that all 
necessary checks have 
been undertaken. 
(Regulation 20) 

WCCIS will provide 
a system for 
performance 
management 
function for all 
carers at any given 
time. 

WCCIS to be set 
up to capture the 
required data.  
Data to be 
systematically 
input to the 
database. 
 

Principal Officer - 
Permanence/ 
Business Support. 
 
 

Green 
 
 
 
 

Recruitment records will be 
up to date and accessible.   

Achieved 

P
age 63



 
 

The appraisal of the 
appointed manager, the 
Fostering team 
members, the Panel 
Chair.  
(Regulation 21 (4) (a)) 

Appraisals take 
place annually. 

Dates to be 
agreed and 
appraisals to take 
place. 

Principal Officer - 
Permanence 
/Fostering Team 
members/Panel 
Chair and HOS. 

Green Appraisals will have taken 
place 2018/19 and booked 
for 2019/20. 

Achieved  

That information is 
included in the 
Statement of Purpose 
about CIW „concerns‟ 
processes and about 
the Quality of Care 
review process and how 
its reports can be 
accessed. 

Statement of 
Purpose to fulfil all 
requirements of the 
regulations. 

Statement of 
Purpose to be 
reviewed and 
updated. 

Principal Officer - 
Permanence. 

Amber  Statement of Purpose 
available and published 
bilingually including a “child 
friendly version”. 

Partially 
complete  

That the Local Authority 
considers Welsh 
Government‟s „More 
Than Just Words‟ 
strategic guidance for 
Welsh Language in 
Social Care and that 
information is included 
in the Statement of 
Purpose, Children‟s 
guides and Quality of 
Care review report 
about any provision of 
Fostering services in 
the Welsh language. 

Statement of 
Purpose and 
Quality of Care to 
fulfil all 
requirements of the 
regulations. 

Statement of 
Purpose to be 
reviewed and 
updated. 
 
Review format of 
Quality of Care 
report and agree 
responsibilities for 
completion. 

Principal Officer - 
Permanence. 

Amber  Statement of Purpose 
available and published 
bilingually including a “child 
friendly version”. 

Partially 
complete 

Information in Foster 
Carer files about their 
terms of approval is 

WCCIS will 
produce the up-to-
date Foster Carer 

WCCIS to be set 
up to capture the 
required data.  

Principal Officer - 
Permanence/ 
Business Support. 

Green WCCIS to provide a 
Fostering register – 
validated through regular 

Achieved  

P
age 64



 
 

consistent and 
accurate. 

file. Data to be 
systematically 
input to the 
database. 

use.  

Quality Assurance 
functions of the 
Fostering Panel are 
fulfilled; in particular in 
relation to connected 
persons assessments, 
and to monitor the 
range of Foster Carers 
available in comparison 
with the needs of 
children. 

Quality Assurance 
process for panel is 
robust and signed 
off. 
 
Panel to ensure 
matters relating to 
quality are fed back 
to Agency - areas 
of outstanding 
practice and areas 
of improvement. 
 
Quality Assurance 
report to be 
presented to panel 
for discussion/ 
consideration and 
recommendations.  

Processes for 
presenting cases 
to panel to be 
reviewed. 
 
 

Principal Officer - 
Permanence/ 
Panel Chair. 

Green 
 
 

Minutes reflect panel‟s 
comments in relation to 
quality in the section 
“matters to refer to agency”. 

 Achieved. 

That data and analysis 
of the intended 
placement and well-
being outcomes of 
children placed within 
the Fostering service is 
included in future 
Quality of Care review 
reports. 

Quality of Care 
report details 
placement made, 
whether matched 
placement, 
placement 
disruptions and 
outcomes of 
placement. 
 

Review format of 
Quality of Care 
report and agree 
responsibilities for 
completion. 

Principal Officer - 
Permanence. 

Amber  Quality of Care report will 
fulfil the requirements of the 
regulations. 

Partially 
complete 

P
age 65



 
 

Information regarding 
the education 
attainment of children 
placed within the 
Fostering service is 
included in future 
Quality of Care review 
reports. 

The educational 
outcomes of 
children is 
monitored and 
improved. 

Clear sharing of 
information 
between LACES 
and Supervising 
Social worker on a 
termly basis. 

Principal Officer - 
Permanence and 
LACES Team 
Manager. 

Green Information will be reported 
through the Quality of Care 
report. 

Achieved  

Any issues raised by 
Foster Carers and staff 
about the impact of 
communication with 
Senior Managers are 
discussed within 
existing systems for 
Foster Carer 
supervision and support 
meetings and within 
staff supervision and 
team meetings. 

Foster Carers and 
staff report that 
there is good 
communication 
between 
themselves and the 
agency including at 
Senior Manager 
and Head of 
Service level.  

Agreed 
communication 
strategy between 
Foster Carers, 
staff and Senior 
Management. 

Principal Officer - 
Permanence. 

Green Information will be reported 
through the Quality of Care 
report. 

Achieved   

Arrangements are made 
to ensure that any 
necessary 
unannounced 
supervisory visits are 
made to Foster Carers. 

WCCIS will 
produce exception 
reporting for 
supervisory 
visits/unannounced 
visits due.  
 
Performance to be 
reported in Quality 
of Care report. 

WCCIS to be set 
up to capture the 
required data.  
 
Data to be 
systematically 
input to the 
database. 

Principal Officer - 
Permanence/ 
Business Support. 

Green  WCCIS to provide live 
report on visits.  
 
Overall performance to be 
reported through the Quality 
of Care report. 

Achieved  

 

P
age 66



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Extension of 20 mph Zone in Gellideg – Proposed 
Permanent Traffic Regulation Order 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 As a result of representations from residents and ward Councillors in the Gellideg 

area together with Coed-y-Dderwen Community Primary School, it is proposed to 
extend the existing 20 mph zone currently along part of Heol Tai Mawr and Heol 
Parc Maen in the vicinity of the school to additional roads in Gellideg.  

 
1.2 In addition to the 20 mph zone it is proposed to introduce traffic calming measures at 

a number of locations in the area with the construction of a new footway outside the 
school at Tai Mawr Way.  

 
1.3 The Council has engaged and developed proposals with residents, ward Councillors 

and the school.  
 
1.4 The aim of the proposals is to improve road safety in the Gellideg area and improve 

facilities and routes for pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
1.5 A plan showing the existing and proposed 20 mph zone is available via the 

Background Paper link for information purposes. 
 
1.6 The new 20 mph zone would require introduction of a Traffic Regulation Order with 

associated signing. 
 

Date Written 20th November 2019 

Report Author Martin Stark  

Service Area Engineering  

Committee Division Portfolio  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 18th December 2019 

Page 67

Agenda Item 10



1.7 Legislation is available under Section 84 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to 
make a Traffic Order that may prohibit the driving of motor vehicles at a speed 
exceeding 20 mph. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1      a) Public Notice be given of the County Borough Council’s intention to make a 

permanent Traffic Regulation Order under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984, the effect of which is detailed in the schedule at Appendix A, be 
approved; 

 
           b) In the event of no objections being received, the said permanent Order be    

approved and then made; 
 
 c) If objections are received a report is presented to the appropriate Committee

 for consideration as soon as practicable be approved. 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 As a result of representations from residents in the Gellideg area, requests from 

ward Councillors and Coed-y-Dderwen Community Primary School it is proposed to 
extend the existing 20 mph zone currently along part of Heol Tai Mawr and Heol 
Parc Maen in the vicinity of the school, to additional roads in Gellideg.  

 
3.2 In addition to the 20 mph zone it is proposed to introduce traffic calming measures at 

a number of locations in the area and also a new footway outside the school at Tai 
Mawr Way.  

 
3.3 The Council has engaged and developed proposals with residents, ward Councillors 

and the school.  
 
3.4 The aim of the proposals is to improve road safety in the Gellideg area and improve 

facilities and routes for pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
3.5 A plan showing the existing and proposed 20 mph zone is available via the 

Background Paper link for information purposes. 
 
3.6 The new 20 mph zone would require introduction of a Traffic Regulation Order with 

associated signing. 
 
3.7 Legislation is available under Section 84 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to 

make a Traffic Order that may prohibit the driving of motor vehicles at a speed 
exceeding 20 mph. 

 
3.8 As part of Statutory Traffic Regulation Order procedure, consultation has been 

carried out with the emergency services and other representative users groups. No 
objections were received. The next stage of the Traffic Order process would be to 
give Public Notice of the Council’s intention to make the permanent Order including 

Page 68



an objection period giving the opportunity for objections to be received from the 
general public.  If no objections are received, the Order can be made. If objections 
are received a report would be presented to the appropriate Committee for 
consideration as soon as practicable. 

 
3.9 The extension of the 20mph zone in Gellideg forms part of an approved active travel 

scheme that also includes new footways to improve walking and cycling routes to 
Coed-y-Dderwen school.  

    
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
4.1 There are administrative costs relating to the publishing of the Traffic Regulation 

Order notices together with construction costs for traffic signs, roadmarkings and 
speed cushions, all of which will be met via external Active Travel funds and the total 
cost is estimated at £20,000. 

 

5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
3 of 10 0 of 10 7 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts against: 
 

 The Well-being objectives are that the proposals will provide better health and well-
being to children, young people and older people. Lowering the speed limit will assist in 
developing the environment and safer communities and supporting people, will help 
protect, enhance and promote the environment, help people enjoy good physical health, 
promote healthy behaviours, increased levels of physical activity and will support people 
living independently where they feel safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. 

 

Page 69



 The Sustainable Development Principles are that the proposals will also provide long 
term benefits and deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. Representations from 
residents were received and requests from ward Councillors to lower traffic speed in the 
area. Site visits and engagement with residents, ward Councillors and the school was 
carried out to gather information on traffic issues. The Engineering Department has 
collaborated with other Council Departments and organisations on the proposals. 
 

 The Protected Characteristics and Welsh Language are that the proposals have been 
considered by the Engineering Department to provide a positive impact on improving 
road safety in the area for road users. The improvements will provide better health and 
well-being to children, young people and older people. The proposals will incorporate the 
Welsh language in Public Notices. 

 
No negative impacts have been identified against the Well-being Objectives, the Sustainable 
Development Principles, Protected Characteristics and Welsh Language and Biodiversity. 

 

 
 
JUDITH JONES  
CHIEF OFFICER NEIGHBOURHOOD 
SERVICES  

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES  
CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING & 

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

File ref. H10.0 
 
 

Ongoing Traffic Management Section, 
Engineering Department, Unit 5 
Pentrebach 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix A 
 
SCHEDULE OF MEASUREMENTS AND VARIATION OF ORDERS 
 
SCHEDULE 1 
 
20 MILES PER HOUR SPEED LIMIT  
 
 
1. The entire length of Bro-y-ffrwd Swansea Road  
2. The entire length of Heol Bryn Padell Swansea Road  
3. The entire length of Heol Brychan Swansea Road 
4. The entire length of Heol Bryn Man Swansea Road  
5. The entire length of Heol Bryn Selu Swansea Road 
6. The entire length of Heol Twyn Du Swansea Road 
7. The entire length of Heol Llwyn Deri Swansea Road 
8. The entire length of Heol Llwyn Onnen Swansea Road  
9. The entire length of Heol Llwyn Drysi Swansea Road 
10. The entire length of Heol Llwyn Gollen Swansea  
11. The entire length of Heol Rhos Las Swansea Road 
12. The entire length of Heol Bryn Hebog Swansea Road  
13. The entire length of Heol Parc Glas Swansea Road  
14. The road connecting Heol Bryn Hebog and Heol Parc Glas Swansea Road to the 

side of no. 13 Heol Parc Glas 
15. The entire length of Heol Scwrfa Swansea Road 
16. The entire length of Lansbury Road Swansea Road  
17. The entire length of Heol Parc-y-lan Swansea Road 
18. The entire length of Heol Bryn-y-gwyddyl Swansea Road 
19. The entire length of Heol Llwyn Brain Swansea Road  
20. The road connecting Heol Llwyn Brain and Heol Twyn Du Swansea Road to the side 

of no. 24 Heol Llwyn Gollen  
21. The section of Tai Mawr Way Swansea Road from its junction with Heol Llwyn Brain 

extending south to the junction with the road leading to Gelli-deg, including the 
section of Tai Mawr Way forming a cul-de-sac extending north off the northern end of 
Tai Mawr Way. 

22.  The entire length of Heol Penrhiw Swansea Road 
23.  The entire length of Heol Tai Mawr Swansea Road 
24. The section of Heol Parc Maen Swansea Road between its north and south junctions 

with Heol Tai Mawr. 
25. The section of Heol Parc Maen Swansea Road between no.s 44 to 70 Heol Parc 

Maen.  
26. The entire length of Erw Las Swansea Road. 
27. The entire lengths of Maen Dy Swansea Road including the section of Maen Dy 

between no.s 1 and 2. 

Page 71



28. The entire length of Heol Nantgau Swansea Road between its northwest and east 
junctions with  Heol Tai Mawr. 

 
 
 
 
SCHEDULE 2  
 
Variation of Orders 
 
Vary the “Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Heol Tai Mawr and Heol Parc Maen,  
Gellideg, Merthyr Tydfil (20 mph Speed Limit) (One-Way Traffic) Order 2006” by the  
deletion of schedule 1. 
 

 

Page 72



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

CABINET - INFORMATION REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

MTCBC Change and Well-being Programme - 
Quarter Two Progress 2019-2020 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
  
1.1 This report provides an update on progress of the Change and Well-being 

Programme as of quarter two 2019/20.     
 
1.2 The MTCBC Change Programme is governed by the Change and Well-being 

Programme Board (CWPB).  The CWPB is chaired by the Chief Executive. The 
MTCBC Change and Well-being Programme works alongside the Budget Board to 
address the financial requirements of MTCBC.  The operational delivery of identified 
change programmes and projects is monitored via the MTCBC Change and Well-
being Steering Group (CWSG).   

 
1.3 It should be noted that the current position for 2019/20 shows that delivery is at 94% 

of the anticipated savings this equates to a saving of £2,372,000 against a target for 
the programme of £2,528,000, at quarter two.   

 
1.4 The next steps regarding the change and well-being programme will be: to continue 

to work on delivery of change and well-being to meet the financial target for 2019/20; 
develop cashable savings proposals to meet the financial sustainability challenge; 
develop and deliver proposals to address any gaps regarding governance and 
leadership; to continue to monitor, challenge and support the delivery of the change 
programme via the CMSG and CMPB.   

 

 
 

Date Written 29th November 2019 * 

Report Author Andrew Mogford / Matthew Rivers 

Service Area Change and Performance  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non-Exempt 

Committee Date 18th December 2019 

Page 73

Agenda Item 11



2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Cabinet Members will be aware of the ‘Provisional Revenue Monitoring 2019-20 – 

Quarter 2 report presented to Cabinet on the 20th November 2019.  The report 
projects a net revenue deficit of £85,000.  This includes savings realised as part of 
the MTCBC Change and Well-being Programme.  Further potential in-year savings 
are being identified. 
 

2.2 To arrive at this position, address the financial pressures of 2019/20 and going 
forward, key change projects were designed and to allow an additional, enhanced 
voluntary redundancy/voluntary early retirement (VR/VER) package to be offered 
across MTCBC.   
 

2.3 As well as savings type projects, the governance arrangements includes impacts on 
our Well-being Objectives.  Following the publication of the MTCBC Annual 
Performance Review and Focus on the Future document, MTCBC has reviewed its 
priorities.  As part of this, and launching the new self-evaluation process, business 
improvement plans (BIPs) are being developed regarding continuous improvement.  
The process also requires more focus to be placed designing projects (using the 5 
ways of working) to enhance the delivery of MTCBC’s four well-being objectives 
namely: 
 
2.3.1 Working Life: 

 People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet needs of 
businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil an attractive destination. 

 
2.3.2 Environmental Well-being: 

 Communities protect, enhance and promote our environment and 
countryside. 

 
2.3.3 Living Well: 

 People are empowered to live independently within their communities, 
where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. 

 
2.3.4 Best Start to Life: 

 Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped with 
the skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals. 

 
2.4 The MTCBC Change and Well-being Programme is governed by the Change and 

Well-being Programme Board (CWPB).  The Change and Well-being Programme 
Board is chaired by the Chief Executive.  The Change and Well-being Programme 
Board reviews change programmes and projects and has the authority to call on 
service managers and/or programme/projects managers to challenge and support 
them on the delivery of their programmes/projects.   

 
2.5 The MTCBC Change and Well-being Programme works alongside the Budget Board 

to address the financial requirements of MTCBC.  As such this report supports the 
‘Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019-20 – Quarter 2 report (20th November 2019).  In 
addition to this and the existing change programme, any significant change projects 

Page 74



emerging from our self-evaluation process can be monitored through these existing 
governance arrangements.   

 
2.6 The operational delivery of identified change programmes and projects is monitored 

via the MTCBC Change and Well-being Steering Group (CWSG).  The CWSG 
provides challenge and support to service managers and, in conjunction with the 
CWPB, hold managers accountable for delivering proposed savings.  The group 
comprises of MTCBC officers and is chaired by the Business Change Manager and 
is made up of staff members from Business Change, Legal, HR, Communications, 
Finance, Equalities, Risk and Consultation.  This approach allows the programme to 
maintain the pace required for delivery in implementing the work-streams outlined 
above. 

 

3.0 PROGRESS – QUARTER TWO 
 
3.1 To be able to manage the programme effectively, the work-streams have been 

categorised as follows: 
 

Category Explanation 

Blue Project 100% complete and savings accrued 

Green Successful delivery of the project/programme to time, cost and 
quality appears highly likely and there are no major outstanding 
issues that at this stage appear to threaten delivery significantly 

Amber Successful delivery appears feasible but significant issues 
already exists requiring management attention. These appear 
resolvable at this stage and if addressed promptly, should not 
present a cost/schedule overrun 

Red Successful delivery of the project/programme appears to be 
unachievable. There are major issues on project/programme 
definition, schedule, budget required quality or benefits delivery, 
which at this stage does not appear to be manageable or 
resolvable. The Project/Programme may need re-baselining 
and/or overall viability re-assessed 

 
3.2 The work-streams outlined below are to address changes required for 2019/20.  The 

current status of these work-streams are summarised in the table below:  
 

Work-Stream Description - Reductions and/or service changes based on the 
VER/VR reports approved by Council between November 2018 and 
March 2019. 

Current 
Status 

(BRAG) 

Central 
Services 

Complete (minor services changes are outstanding but are part of 
the business as usual task list for service areas). 

B 

Best Start to 
Life 

Complete. B 

Working Life Disabled Facilities Grants function – Collaboration with RCT is 
being finalised; staffing arrangements in progress; timescales are 
amber. 

A 

Living Well Care Home proposals – Delay in taking outcomes to Council / 
Scrutiny. This causes an estimated slippage of approximately 
£52,000 (this will be reviewed during implementation). Alternative 
savings are being identified outside this programme to cover this 
slippage. Due to amount of savings outstanding, continued 

A 

Page 75



progress and alternative proposals relating to the wider savings 
and addressing overspends (reported to Cabinet on the 20

th
 

November 2019), this has been judged to be an amber status.  
Other proposals within the programme have been delivered.   

Environmental 
Well-being 

Changes to working arrangements yet to be implemented.  This 
causes slippage of £52,000 in 2019/20 which is set to increase in 
2020/21.  These were due to be implemented by the 1

st
 August 

2019.  For Quarter 2 the implementation still hasn’t been achieved, 
it is anticipated that the savings will not be achieved in 2010/20 
therefore the full financial slippage will be incurred.   

R 

 
3.3 It should be noted that the current position for 2019/20 shows that delivery is at 94% 

of the anticipated savings (a saving of £2,372,000 against a target for the 
programme of £2,528,000, at quarter 2). 

 
3.4 As reported in quarter 1, staff are adapting to new ways of working and changes to 

approaches to service delivery.  This is being monitored through service plans.     
 
3.5 Looking forward to future years, proposals for cashable savings are being developed 

in quarters 2 and 3 in readiness for 2020/21 and the remainder of the MTFP. 
 

4.0 Next Steps 
 
4.1 To continue to work on delivery of change and well-being to meet the financial target 

for 2019/20.  If this is not feasible, escalate issues via the relevant means.  
Alternative savings will be challenged at budget board and the delivery may be 
supported via the Change and Well-being Steering Group (if appropriate).   

 
4.2 Develop cashable savings proposals to meet the financial sustainability challenge. 
 
4.3 Develop and deliver proposals to address any gaps regarding governance and 

leadership.  Refocus the MTCBC Change Programme for 2019/20 and going 
forward. 

 
4.4 To continue to monitor, challenge and support the delivery of the change programme 

via the CMSG and CMPB. 
 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 It should be noted that the current position for 2019/20 shows that delivery is at 94% 

of the anticipated savings this equates to a saving of £2,372,000 against a target for 
the programme of £2,528,000, at quarter 2. 

 
5.2 Any redundancy costs will be accounted for centrally through the Finance Team. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



6.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

6.1 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 

Objectives 

  

4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 

Principles - How have you 

considered the five ways of 

working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 

Welsh Language) 

 

0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 

 
0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 
The main positive impacts are against the well-being objectives and sustainable development 
principles.  Projects are aligned to meeting the well-being objectives. Forward plans and projects 
are to be delivered via the 5 ways of working.  
 
There are no negative impacts. 
 

 
ELLIS COOPER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 
No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  
 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 85

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cabinet Forward Plan
	Appendix 1

	4 Transport Infrastructure
	5 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) – Funding Applications
	6 Off Street Parking Places Order Amendment 20
	7 Part Stopping Up Of Adopted Highway
	Appendix 1

	8 School Reorganisation 3-16 Voluntary Aided School
	9 Fostering Service Post Inspection Action Plan
	10 Extension of 20 mph Zone in Gellideg – Proposed Permanent Traffic Regulation Order
	11 MTCBC Change and Well-being Programme – Quarter Two Progress 2019-2020
	12 Bus Station Progress Report
	13 Direct Payment Support Services

